
 
 
 

  
                   

    

 
    

TOWN COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 AUGUST 4, 2009 

Mic
Gina M

F

 
CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE TO THE FLAG.  The Chairman, Michael Bowie, c
order and led the pledge of allegiance to the flag at 7:00 PM. 
  
ROLL CALL.  Members present were Councilors Wells, Bowie, Mason, Crafts
7:15 PM), and Cote.  Councilor Larochelle was excused.  Also present were Step
Manager; Cathy Ricker, Finance Director; and approximately ten citizens in the a
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING  
 

BOARD OF ASSESSMENT REVIEW ORDINANCE 
 

The chairman opened the public hearing.  There were no comments.  Th
the public hearing. 

 
PAWNBROKER LICENSE FOR DANIEL MILLER, JR.

D/B/A DOUBLE DIAMOND PAWN SHOP 
 

The chairman opened the public hearing.  There were no comments.  Th
the public hearing. 

 
 

RENEWAL ITINERANT VENDOR PERMIT FOR  
BOB CUMMINS  D/B/A TAP ENTERPRISES

 
The chairman opened the public hearing.  There were no comments.  Th
the public hearing. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
VOTE (2009-120) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Cote moved to ap
of July 7, 2009, a Pawnbroker License for Daniel Miller, Jr. d/b/a Doub
Shop and a renewal Itinerant Vendor Permit for Bob Cummins d/b/a
Order passed – Vote 5-0. 

 
Item Taken Out of Order 

 
A. UNIVERSITY OF VERMONT FINAL REPORT

 
Andrew Weeks from the University of Vermont presented his transportat
“Modeling the Transportation Impacts of Smart Growth Development in Main
University of Vermont and the Maine Department of Transportation.   Mr. We
 

hael Bowie, Chair At Large 2009  
ason, Vice Chair District 1 2010 

ern Larochelle, Jr., At Large 2010 
Roger Cote, At Large 2011 

Janet Henry, District 1 2009 
Dale Crafts, District 2 2010 

Norma Wells, District 2 2009 
alled the meeting to 

, Henry (arriving at 
hen Eldridge, Town 
udience.   

e chairman closed 

 

e chairman closed 

e chairman closed 

prove the Minutes 
le Diamond Pawn 
 Tap Enterprises.  

ion research study 
e” as funded by the 
eks pointed out that 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 August 4, 2009 

                   tons)   

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

he used our MPO model and statistics acquired from the Androscoggin Valley Council of 
Governments/Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center.  The purpose of the study was to 
investigate the relationship between land use development, which implements smart growth 
principles, and its impact on transportation by looking at different scenarios for dense infill 
development in existing towns.   
 
Mr. Weeks explained “smart growth” uses planning principles to foster dense, mixed use 
development that can be effectively serviced by transit with strategies that can encourage use of 
transit by travelers, thus referred to as “transit oriented” development.  He pointed out that the goal 
here is to reduce dependence on automobiles for travel and create a livable community while 
preserving undeveloped land and conserving natural resources. 
 
Mr. Weeks said that smart growth did not necessarily equal transit-oriented development since 
transit-oriented development requires transit systems and infrastructure support, along with 
possible incentives for transit ridership.   He said his study did not represent complete transit-
oriented development strategies. 
 
Mr. Weeks pointed out that the growth scenarios for Lisbon consisted of the “Status Quo,” which 
assumes the expected growth from 2005 to 2030 as projected in the ATRC’s MPO travel demand 
model using existing land use patterns, that the Targeted Smart Growth,” reorganizes the expected 
growth from 2005 to 2030 in Lisbon Falls only, centralizing a large portion of new households and 
employment opportunities most likely centered at the Worumbo Mill site, and that “Multiple Smart 
Growth,” in addition to the smart growth plan for Lisbon Falls, includes a reorganized expected 
growth in the vicinity of Lisbon Street, Village Street, and Grandview Street.  Using these scenarios 
for targeted growth he presented the following statistics for household growth:   
 
 Status Quo Growth:  4,148 household in 2030 
 Targeted Smart Growth:  25% of household growth redirected to Lisbon Falls 
 Multiple Smart Growths:  60% of household growth redirected to Lisbon Falls & the Village  
 
Using these scenarios for targeted growth he presented the following statistics for employment 
growth: 
 
 Status Quo Growth:  2,593 jobs in 2030 
 Targeted Smart Growth:  30% or 3.9% of employment growth redirected to Lisbon Falls 

Multiple Smart Growths: 41% or 5.4% of employment growth redirected to the Falls & Village 
 
Mr. Weeks said the result for all three scenarios is as follows: 
 
    Average    Daily        VMT           Percent      Daily GHG      Percent 
        Trip       Total     Reduction   Reduction    Emissions      Reduction 
    Length       VMT     from S.Q.     from S.Q.    CO2E(metric    from S.Q. 

Status Quo   8.94   152,955          _ _   _ _           70.4      _ _ 
Targeted Smart Growth 8.91   152,300        - 656 - 0.43%           70.1    - 0.42% 
Multiple Smart Growth 8.91   151,917      - 1,038           - 0.685              70.0    - 0.57% 
 
(1) Trip length (distance in miles) includes distance traveled for trips from/to Lisbon zones only. 
(2) Average trip length of HBW and NHB trip purposes as daily person trips. 
(3) VMT for roadway network within Lisbon only; TAZ connectors were omitted from VMT estimates. 
 
Mr. Weeks said doing the land use component without the transit piece is probably not good.  They 
need to be schemed out in harmony.  He said, okay, we are concentrating growth, but what’s the 
point of that.  It’s so that it’s more accessible to transit use if a transit corridor was set up along 
Route 196.  Overall conclusions, again, there is that slight effect that the dense mixed use effect has 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 August 4, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

on the VMT totals.  Transit may increase the benefit.  Really, the best way to quantify that is to do a 
more detailed modeling effort where another component is put into the model where the traveler 
would weight in on the different transit options, vehicle, bus, or other type of transit and determine 
the which utility is best one for this trip purpose and they would pick that.  Currently the models do 
not have a robust module to do that and so it was kind of a quick exercise to make an assumption 
about the transit use to see what it applied to.  That’s certainly a possibility for further studies.  We 
actually do a lot of studies at the University of Vermont and we are looking at this right now.   
Perhaps MDOT will be interested in doing that.   
 

Councilor Henry arrived. 
 
Mr. Weeks said expected growth is slow, which is expected for a lot of rural communities especially 
in these more difficult economic times so there was not a lot of growth to play with in terms of 
tinkering about how the town would develop from this point on.  Again, because growth is small, 
perhaps instead of looking at towns individually in trying to set up smart growth hubs and or 
centers within the towns, perhaps towns themselves need to look at hubs or centers on a regional 
scale.   For example, Lisbon being centered between Lewiston/Auburn and Brunswick could 
become its own.  Instead of looking at just working within Lisbon, working on a regional scale so 
that growth even further out beyond Lisbon boarders (and I know it’s difficult because of growth, 
land use, zoning, and different land use policies all on local levels and individual per town) could 
possibly become the areas center and then have transit connections between Lisbon, 
Lewiston/Auburn and Brunswick, and possibly other towns.    
 
Mr. Weeks said lastly, there is a lot of unquantifiable benefits that go along with redevelopment.  
This looked at very specific number crunching of vehicle miles traveled, but there can be economic 
benefits to revitalizing existing mills sites, especially in downtown areas.  This study did not look at 
those, but they are certainly worth considering when thinking about how to handle the 
management of future growth.  Having economic vitality and revitalization of the mill sites within 
the downtown center is very beneficial, he said.  This report has a lot more detail and discussion in 
it and will be available once the final approval is given.  Mr. Eldridge said this report will become 
part of what Ms. Bradley and the downtown group are working on and will feed into that one final 
recommendation when completed.   
 
 

COUNCIL ORDERS, RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES 
 

BOARD OF ASSESSMENT REVIEW ORDINANCE 
(FINAL READING) 

 
VOTE (2009-121) Councilor Henry, seconded by Councilor Mason moved to adopt the final 
Board of Assessment Review Ordinance as follows:  

Section 1. Establishment. 

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2526(6) and § 5.32 of the Lisbon Town Charter, a Board of 
Assessment Review is hereby established for the Town of Lisbon, Maine. 

Section 2. Composition; qualifications; terms; vacancies. 

The Board shall consist of five regular members and two alternate members who shall 
be appointed by the Town Council and who shall be registered voters of the Town of 
Lisbon.  No Town Council may be a member.  Members shall serve for staggered 
three-year terms or until their successors are appointed, except that for transition 
purposes.  When the first appointments are made, two regular members and one 
alternate member shall be appointed by the Town Council to three-year terms, two 
regular members shall be appointed by the Town Council to two-year terms, and one 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 August 4, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

regular member and one alternate member shall be appointed by the Town Council to 
one-year terms so that no more than two appointments in each category expire each 
year. Vacancies shall be filled within 30 days by appointment by the Town Council for 
the unexpired term. 

Section 3. Officers; meetings; quorum; procedures. 

The Board shall annually elect from its membership a Chairman and a Secretary.  The 
Chairman shall call meetings as necessary and if requested by a majority of the Board, 
shall preside at all meetings, and shall designate alternates to serve in place of 
members who are absent or disqualified. The Secretary shall maintain a record of all 
proceedings including all correspondence of the Board.  All meetings and records shall 
be subject to the Maine Freedom of Access Act, 1 M.R.S.A. § 401-410, except as 
otherwise authorized by law.  A quorum necessary to conduct business shall consist of 
at least 3 members. The Board’s procedure shall be governed by 30-A M.R.S.A. § 
2691(3). 

Section 4. Powers and duties. 

The Board shall hear and decide all appeals properly taken from the refusal of the 
Assessor to make such property tax abatements as may be requested. The Board may 
take such evidence and testimony as it deems necessary, shall receive oral and/or 
documentary evidence and may exclude evidence that it deems to be irrelevant, 
immaterial or unduly repetitive. The Board may grant such abatements as it thinks 
proper. If the Board fails to give written notice of its decision within 60 days of the 
date the appeal is filed, unless the appellant agrees in writing to further delay, the 
appeal shall be deemed denied. The Board’s decisions may be appealed in accordance 
with 36 M.R.S.A. § 843. 

Mr. Eldridge said since our last reading we made the recommended changes, the Town Attorney 
had a chance to tweak it some more, just minor things, which will not require another reading.  
 
Councilor Cote asked do we know how we are going to set this up.  Councilor Bowie said I believe 
we will have to appoint a total of seven members with five regular positions.   One of the changes 
we made was so that they would have staggered terms.   We would put together a little description 
of what the board does and advertise the vacancies.   Mr. Eldridge said we posted it and we have 
two applications already.   
 
Councilor Cote asked if representation from the Board of Appeals or other boards would be allowed 
to serve on this.  Councilor Bowie said we would have to look into that to see if there would be any 
conflict. 
 
Vote By Roll Call - Yeas:  Councilor Wells, Bowie, Crafts, Henry, Cote, and Mason. Nays:  None.  
Order Passed - Vote 6-0.   
 
 

TRANSFERS AND CARRYOVERS 
 

Ms. Ricker presented a spread sheet (see attached).  She said we did have a revenue shortfall this 
year and the main areas of that were the State Revenue Sharing and excise tax accounts, which was 
most of it.  Investment interest and Solid Waste receipts were down along with a lot of other 
accounts.  There were two revenues that will be carried forward, which were added to the bottom of 
the sheet on the carry forward request side so that when you vote it you vote it as one number.  One 
is the bond proceeds and the other is the amount by which Beaver Park Revenue exceeds its 
budgeted amount.  This amount is turned into the Beaver Park Admissions Fund. 
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 August 4, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

Ms. Ricker said we had overdrafts this year, but they were really not as bad as last year.  The largest 
one being the Public Work’s Winter Account.  The total amount we are requesting to transfer is 
$86,538.65, and we are transferring that amount from the insurance line to all the other lines over 
drafted as listed on the spread sheet.  Ms. Ricker went over the list.  She said there were some 
revenues that had not been booked yet because we have not been able to get the numbers yet.  She 
said the two things that we are asking you to vote on tonight are the proposed transfers and then 
the carry forward requests.   
 
Councilor Bowie said the only question I have is when we have an overdraft and we have a carry 
forward, does it make sense to penalize the department for overrunning by minimizing their carry 
forward by the amount of the overdraft, because if it’s a project or something like that, then I don’t 
know if we can actually do that.    
 
Ms. Ricker said you are right, but in some instances, you really don’t have that.  For instance, the 
two General Assistance requests are for heating assistance and the giving tree project.  If there had 
been an overdraft in General Assistance, then I don’t really think you would do that.  You wouldn’t 
take away from the Thanksgiving Fund for the Giving Tree or Heating Assistance Program and in 
some instances I don’t think you can because you have that money restricted for a particular 
purpose.   In some cases, it may be appropriate to short their carry forward, but for the most part 
your carry forwards are limited to your grants, capital projects, equipment, and outstanding 
encumbrances at year end.  There is one exception to that, which is in the Technology line.   
 
Ms. Ricker said we are seeking to carry forward that entire amount of surplus because in April we 
changed our software company and we were going to finance that over a three year period.  She 
said some really interesting things happened.  The bank we usually use did not want to submit a 
proposal, the vendor offered but we declined thinking we were going to go with our bank at a lower 
rate, but TD Equipment Leasing turned us down so we went back to the vendor and the vendor said 
I’m sorry our provider is not writing those anymore.  She said we have come up with some 
proposals.  Bangor Savings is willing to write one for us for 3%, plus a minimum bond counsel fee 
of $1,000.  The vendor found someone called MLC who is willing to write one for 7.581%, plus a 
$500 document fee and whatever it would cost for a legal opinion.  She said one alternative is to just 
pay it off by asking the Council if we could use the funds left over from last year’s budget and then 
find $22,000 in this year’s budget.  There is already $20,000 budgeted this year for the first year’s 
lease payment.  If we get that carry forward and add it to this year’s budgeted amount we could just 
pay it off.    
 
Ms. Ricker said the $16, 221.98 is simply what was left in that budget and the reason we wanted it 
was to get rid of this whole leasing issue.  She covered each line in detail.  She said the Recreation 
Department requested carry forwards for grants and various new programs.  Next year we plan to 
consolidate, she said.  Councilor Bowie said explain the program piece.   
 
Ms. Ricker said if in the middle of the year you start a new program that you didn’t budget for what 
happens is that they go through with it and the revenues get charged to an expense account.  It’s for 
new programs.  The fitness center is one of those programs that they run that way.  Councilor Bowie 
said I am just trying to understand, it is money that we didn’t budget for, they started a new 
program, they are using the revenues to cover the expenses of the program, and they want to carry 
that excess revenue over into the next fiscal year to continue that program going forward.  That 
program was not budgeted for in the next fiscal year’s budget?  Ms. Ricker said it was not budgeted 
in the next fiscal year’s budget. 

 
Councilor Wells said his revenues were short $5,800, too.  Why are revenues short if there are carry 
forwards here?  Ms. Ricker said, theatrically, I can see this being this way for a year or two before 
you decide whether you are going to integrate something into your regular program.  Not all of 
them are like that particular one.  We have the Fitness Center, New Programs, Fitzgerald Grant, 
Summer Trips, After School Program, Senior Programs, the Center Grant, Four Donations, Sunshine 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 August 4, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

Hill Foundation, Project Adventure, the Ball Field Account, and so you can’t say all of them are just 
programs that are run that way.   
 
Councilor Bowie asked if the ones that were programs, not the grants, were they part of the revenue 
budget.  Ms. Ricker said, no. 
 
Mr. Eldridge said when he starts a new program he doesn’t know whether there is enough support 
or requests for this kind of stuff or if the program fee for what he thinks he needs will be sufficient.  
If a program doesn’t generate any interest and we haven’t budgeted for it then it just goes away.  
The after school program grew tremendously as did the morning program so he wants to continue 
those.  I think the way he looks at it, Ms. Ricker, is that if the program is a success then he will take 
that and put it into his operating budget.  If it isn’t a success, he hasn’t spent any tax payer funds on 
it because it’s all been fee based.   
 
Councilor Bowie said we transferred $2,000 for ball fields and why aren’t we using that money?  Ms. 
Ricker said he just didn’t have a chance to do it before the end of June, that’s all.  It’s been raining a 
lot.   
 
Councilor Bowie said I have the same question for these other projects as well.  We budgeted money 
for the Fire Department and Public Works for capital projects and why aren’t we getting them done?      
Mr. Eldridge said, give me an example.  Councilor Bowie said Public Works.  Mr. Eldridge said a 
good chunk of that we had put aside for the Route 9 project.  We had no idea what that cost was 
going to be until we got the bid prices in.  The bids came in less so our percentage will be less, but 
until we pay out that bill we need to hold the money.  Ms. Ricker pointed out that when we finished 
the paving for last year and there was money left a decision was made then that we needed to save 
this money for that particular project and that’s why it didn’t get used this spring, whereas, in a 
normal year it probably would have been spent.   
 
Councilor Bowie said what about the Fire Department.  Ms. Ricker said that’s part of their capital 
projects program.  Mr. Eldridge indicated that was a pay-as-you-go program so it should always 
lapse.  Councilor Bowie said but what are we budgeting for in capital projects each year?   Ms. 
Ricker said this one is to create that reserve.  This is the refurbishment account.  Councilor Bowie 
said we budgeted $75,000 or $62,000.  Councilor Wells said we spent $50,000 of it last year on some 
truck before it was budgeted, and we approved that last year.   Councilor Bowie said so maybe my 
confusion here is that you combined the Fire Department’s capital projects and refurbishment lines 
together.  Ms. Ricker answered, yes; it’s to identify with the Department’s capital projects.  
Councilor Bowie said I’m okay with that as long as we can explain it.  Ms. Ricker said in the 
refurbishment line we budgeted $62,000 last year and we had carried over $21,000 from the 
previous year and we spent $63,000 leaving the $19,527.95 left, which is the carry forward request 
that will get added to the program for this year.  This is looking only at year end June 30. 
 
Ms. Ricker said there are some adjustments that need to be made and the biggest one is something 
called “deferred tax revenue,” which is an accounting adjustment that says if you are not collecting 
your taxes fast enough you are going to have to reserve  part of that balance.  The net to surplus was 
$281,273.11 so while we did have shortfalls, we also had quite a few things lapse to surplus in the 
expenditure side, which shows some responsibility here.  There is a net surplus here, but some of 
that is going to get eaten up by what I call the accounting adjustment for what I call deferred tax 
revenue, which will probably be substantial because we have to look at the 60 days after the year 
end, because that’s what you are going to be able to count as revenue and things are going pretty 
slow right now.   She said so overall there is a positive here.   
 
Councilor Wells said the only concern I have, and I am not picking on the Recreation Department, 
but I have a concern with some of these programs where the money is not going back into the 
general fund.  Between the expenses that we incur in salaries and the fact that the fitness center and 
some of those revenue funds could go towards covering the rent or the cost of maintaining that 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 August 4, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

building, since they take up quite a bit of space down there.  We pushed him really hard for his 
revenues to be in and then to end up with revenues down almost $6,000, plus the carry forward 
money that we should be using to go towards those costs for MTM to maintain itself.   MTM was 
never supposed to be an expense to this town, she said, it was supposed to not be a huge burden or 
cost to this town.  I think we ought to be looking at those revenues being used towards covering 
some of those expenses.  Ms. Ricker pointed out that his expenses were down by about $5,000 and 
that he showed a surplus there of about $4,978.92.   Ms. Ricker added, duly noted.   
 
Councilor Bowie asked the Budget Advisory Board for their comments.   
 
Mrs. Pomelow said the presentation Ms. Ricker gave made sense and that she had no problem with 
it.    
 
Mr. Fellows said right now we are not defining the period of time needed to determine whether a 
program is successful or not and I think we should define that amount of time.  That’s the only 
comment I would make.  Councilor Bowie said we can work on that, right?  Mr. Eldridge said, sure, 
Mr. Stevens and I could set up some guidelines on that.   I know if a program is not successful he 
doesn’t continue it.   
 
Mr. Ganong said the Town’s Attorney should not be utilized as much as we do.  Mr. Eldridge said 
the bulk of the expense this year went into union negotiations, which got dragged out. 
 
VOTE (2009-122A) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to approve the 2009-
2010 Transfers totaling $86,538.65  as follows:  
 
 

    Proposed 

Dept/Div Name Transfers

01‐110  Contingency  448.81 

01‐115  Insurance  (86,538.65) 

01‐120  Legal  13,848.55 

01‐125  Retirement  237.69 

01‐145  Assessing  3,928.87 

01‐160  Tax Collector  1,620.82 

01‐160  Town Clerk  1,613.73 

02‐205  Fire  2,692.28 

03‐306  Winter Public Works  53,766.06 

08‐800  Abatements  8,381.84 
 
 
Order passed – Vote 6-0. 
 
VOTE (2009-122B) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to approve the 2009-
2010 Carryovers of $198,197.51, plus the bond proceeds of $1,314,493.50 totaling $1,512,691.01 as 
follows:  
 

    Proposed 

Dept/Div  Name  Transfers 

01‐135  Technology  16,221.98 

01‐147  Planning Board  4,635.84 

01‐150  Economic Dev.   757.59 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 August 4, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

01‐160  Town Clerk  7,816.00 

02‐200  Police  22,266.47 

02‐205  Fire  19,527.95 

03‐300  Town Engineer  27,906.03 

03‐305  Public Works  52,965.03 

03‐310  Solid Waste  1,116.60 

04‐400  Parks Department  22,384.63 

04‐405 
Recreation 
Department  18,388.14 

05‐500  General Assistance  1,813.80 

10‐100  Bond Issues  2,397.45 

  Bond Proceeds  1,314,493.50 
 
Order passed – Vote 5-1.  (Against: Cote) 
 
 

SCHOOL DEPARTMENT BUDGET AS RATIFIED BY VOTERS 
 
Mr. Eldridge said this is more of an accounting thing than anything else because the School Warrant 
was reduced by the Council they did not have an opportunity to go back and ratify the Warrant 
Articles.  He said the Council would be required to vote by roll call to vote each warrant article in 
separately.   We want to approve each warrant article as it was voted in by the voters.  
 
Councilor Bowie said I would like to simplify this process if possible, rather than reading each one 
of these and all the amounts, we all know the bottom amounts didn‘t change.   Mr. Eldridge said 
actually six of them had changed.   
 
Councilor Bowie said because of the way their articles are written they changed based on where 
they took the money from.  If they took it out of maintenance and operations, then that’s probably 
going to hit three of your different school areas or whatever.  
 
Councilor Bowie said if it’s legal I would like to entertain a motion to accept these articles as they 
have been presented to us.  Councilor Mason said why isn’t somebody from the School here.  Mr. 
Eldridge said they didn’t need to be here because this is just a vote to accept the warrant articles as 
presented.   
 
Councilor Bowie said I am going to look for someone to make a motion for all these articles and for 
someone to second them, and then we are just going to vote on each one.   
 
VOTE (2009-122B) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to approve articles 1 
through 17 in their entirety.   
 
Councilor Bowie said we will vote on Article 1 at $1,010,289 
 
Councilor Mason said what if we rejected these, what would happen then.   Councilor Bowie said I 
don’t know why we would reject it because it’s the number that we set.  Councilor Mason said I 
realize that, but why are we voting in the first place.  
 
Councilor Bowie said I think it’s a procedural issue that came up, that the School Committee did not 
get back to us in time with these before we set the; we were all in a rush to get this back in front of 
the public once we had set the final number and I had asked the School Committee the question do 
you have to redo your articles.  They said no, we know the new numbers and we can give them to 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 9 August 4, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

the Town Clerk and I believe the ballot that was available at the polls Election Day had all of these 
values on it for the public to see so they voted based upon knowing those numbers.  
 
Councilor Wells said but I thought they told us they took everything from Article 4.   Councilor 
Bowie said that’s not the case.  Councilor Wells said we did the $115,000 and we asked them where 
it was going to come from and they told us it was coming from operations and facilities.  They told 
us exactly where it was coming from, so for them to say now that they changed all of these numbers, 
I guess I want to know why.  If it’s not all out of Article 4, then they need to explain this. 
 
Councilor Bowie said okay, we are not going to vote on this tonight.  I’ll ask that this be moved to 
our next meeting and that we come back with a sheet of paper that has the “was” and the “is” on it 
for each Article.   Councilor Wells said and the whys.   
 
Councilor Wells said I move to withdraw my motion.  Motion withdrawn.     
 
Councilor Wells said if they came back and they really did take a zero percent increase in their 
contract then it would change all those numbers on every single line, but I think they need to 
explain that, Councilor Bowie, because we took a $115,000 off the bottom and they told us it was 
coming out of one place, what changed.  I think they need to come and explain that to us if it’s not 
all out of Article 4, which is what they told us they were taking it out of.    
 
Councilor Bowie said this item will be moved to the next agenda.  Mr. Eldridge said they settled 
their union negotiations.   Councilor Bowie said I would like to have on the “was-is” what was at 
the voting booth for the values for each of the articles too.   
 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
A. UNIVERSITY OF VERMONT FINAL REPORT

(Item taken out of order – see discussion after consent agenda above) 
 

B. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Eldridge said Crooker has been working on the Route 9 & 196 project.  Crooker has been okayed 
to do the compaction test.  They are very familiar with MDOT’s guidelines.   He said I had 
somebody inquire about the 40 acres the town owns on Route 9 and they had asked if the Council 
had any interest in selling it.  Councilor Bowie said the last time we asked the town about selling 
that property it was voted down by the residents.  Councilor Crafts said I have no interest in selling 
it.  Councilor Bowie said I do know there are some snowmobile and ATV trails that go through 
there.  
 
Mr. Eldridge said there were some scheduling problems with the Water Department, which has a 
lot to do with it being summer time.  Hopefully, we will get it scheduled by the end of the month.   
 
Mr. Eldridge pointed out the paving projects on Ferry and Hudon Road.  He said they were doing 
final coats on most of the ones I’ve seen.  They were doing some catch basin work on Ferry Road 
today.  We are on schedule for what we had planned to do.  
 
Mr. Eldridge said we are getting ready to do a tax commitment and we should have that to you by 
Friday.  We are set up to go from 62% to 56%, which is just pushing the envelope towards a 
revaluation.  We will talk more about that in the fall.   
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 10 August 4, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

Mr. Eldridge said last night the summer reading program closed and they exceeded what they 
thought they would do.  The kids read 1,460 books and in doing so the Librarian and the Children’s 
Librarian were up on the Fire Department roof from 1-5PM today so you will see that in the paper 
tomorrow.  I can’t say enough about what a great program that is.  She does an excellent job.  It’s a 
supplement to the kids’ education and a joy to see the kids reading.   
 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Reginald Thiboutot said I own the property at 39 Village Street and the reason I am here tonight is 
because I was informed by the Town Manager that there was going to be a meeting and I want to 
request it be an open meeting because of some of the things that I have seen and I would like the 
public to be aware of all of this.  Councilor Bowie said all meetings we have are open.  Mr. 
Thiboutot said when I called earlier they said it wasn’t.  Mr. Eldridge said there was an executive 
session scheduled with our legal council, that’s on the schedule.  Mr. Thiboutot said are you going 
to be talking about that property at that time?   Councilor Bowie said I have no idea.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said I guess an engineer had gone and looked at that home and I guess there is a 
problem with, I don’t exactly know, because I couldn’t get any information from the Town Manager 
about the condition of the building.  Mr. Eldridge said did you receive the copy of the letter from the 
Engineer that we sent you yesterday.  Mr. Thiboutot said, yes, and it said the structure is sound and 
that it’s mostly not weather tight and they are saying it needs a fence around the property.  Mr. 
Eldridge said we can certainly put it on the agenda if it’s something you would like to talk about in 
more length.  The Council, I don’t believe, has any documentation to really talk about it 
intelligently.   
 
Mr. Thiboutot said in the meeting Thursday we held didn’t you tell me to be here this evening.  Mr. 
Eldridge said, I said you may want to attend and that I don’t know if the Council may want to 
discuss it or not that night.  Legal Council has requested we go into executive session and that’s 
between Legal Council and this Council.  Mr. Thiboutot said so I guess I’ll wait until then. Sorry 
about that, I guess I’m getting up too early then.   
 

APPOINTMENTS - NONE 
 

COUNCILOR COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Councilor Henry said I want to thank Jake Cyr and all the coaches that participated in the Lobster 
Bowl.  We lost by one point.  Eastern won.  It was a great game and I congratulate them.   There was 
great sportsmanship by all the boys.   They are our best athletes in the state.  It was a great 
afternoon.  Councilor Larochelle was there to support the team even though his son Chris was in the 
hospital.   
 
Councilor Mason said we met last week with the Downtown Network people.  That was a very 
interesting meeting.  They are very impressed with what we have to work with.   It’s part of the 
process that we work with the Downtown Network to try and become a downtown community 
with in two or three years, hopefully.  Basically, what that program does is that they come into a 
town and try to improve it, be it, clean up the town or help with things like the Vermont 
Transportation Study.   We have been very lucky to have the Vermont Transportation Study and 
MDOT studies to help us in turn get to work on this Downtown Networking Program.  The people 
that came were very impressed with what we had done already.  
 
Councilor Bowie said I didn’t get a chance to attend that, but would it be worth writing a letter from 
the Council to the Downtown Networking Group just to show them our support is behind that since 
we all couldn’t be there.  Councilor Mason said I would assume it would be nice.  They do realize 
our Council is very much behind us.  There were two folks here from Bath, Jane Palmer and Bill 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 11 August 4, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 9/11/2009 4:12:51 PM 

King, who have been a part of the Bath effort.  That town has drastically improved over the past 
several years and they were highly impressed with what we have done and with the support we 
have from the Council.  We had another meeting with Ms. Bradley last week with our promotions 
committee and we had a good showing with three or four new members on it.   The flag project is 
part of that.  We are still trying to do flower boxes and those kinds of things, too, to get the visual 
effect going and then from there we will do the economic development part.  It’s quite a process, but 
we are a head of the game.  
 
Councilor Bowie said I have one thing to bring up, based on a rough budget year, I thought the 
Council might like to take a week off and I was thinking instead of having a meeting on the 18th that 
we take that off and wait until the first meeting in September to meet.  Councilor Henry said I am 
going to be away that week.   
 
Councilor Bowie said if the Council is in favor of that we could take a one week hiatus, so to speak, 
and come back into session at our first meeting in September.  He said we will have to juggle the 
Water Department meeting if that gets scheduled.  Councilor Bowie said I think Council has worked 
hard this year with the budget and that an extra week off would be worthwhile, especially if we get 
some more good weather to spend time with the family or whatever.   Councilor Wells asked, is that 
an issue with the fact that we just tabled the school item?  Councilor Bowie said no, the only thing 
that I would ask is that if anyone is around town on the 18th that you come in to sign warrants.  They 
are not ready until that Tuesday.  Mr. Eldridge said we will send out a reminder to make sure we 
have two people come in to sign them.   
 
Councilor Wells said Councilor Larochelle and she attended the School Facilities Committee 
meeting last night.  She said the meeting we had a couple of weeks ago was a little discouraging 
only because the dollar amounts were coming back very high.  There is definitely not enough 
money in the budget to do that, but I understand they worked really hard in doing some “thinking 
outside the box” and coming up with some ideas on how to rearrange classrooms down there to free 
up space to sort of work towards the NEASC requirements.  She said Councilor Larochelle strongly 
suggested to them that they keep the town, the Council, and the public informed about how they 
are spending the money that they do have in their budget that they carried forward this year to 
meet some of these requirements and to put it on their website.  Hopefully, the town will be able to 
see how they are spending money and how they are addressing this NEASC issue and the fact that 
we are now on probation.       

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
VOTE (2009-123) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Mason moved to go into executive 
session per 1 MRSA Section 405 (6) (E) consultation with legal counsel at 8:46 PM.  Order passed – 
Vote 6-0.  The Council Secretary was dismissed.  The Council came out of executive session at 9:15 
PM. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
VOTE (2009124) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Mason moved to adjourn at 9:15 PM.  
Order passed - Vote 6-0. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Twila D. Lycette, Council Secretary 

Town Clerk, Lifetime CCM 
 


